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STATE OF CONNECTICUT
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NYLO METAL FINISHING, LLC

UNILATERAL ORDER NO. WSWDH19003
Date Issued: 2/21/2019

>

The Commissioner of Energy and Environmental Protection ("the Commissioner") finds:

1. NYLO Metal Finishing, LLC (“Respondent”) is a Connecticut corporation registered to do
business in Connecticut with the Connecticut Secretary of the State.

Z. Respondent’s registered business address listed with the Connecticut Secretary of the State is 730
North Main Street, Waterbury, Connecticut 06704.

3. Respondent is or has engaged in the business of conducting commercial metal finishing operations
at 730 North Main Street, Waterbury, Connecticut and more fully described as Assessor’s Map
0237, Block 0166 and Lot 0024 on the Property Records of the City of Waterbury, Connecticut,
The property will hereinafter be referred to as the “Site”.

4. Respondent is or has operated as a large quantity generator of hazardous waste at the site.

3. Staff from the Bureau of Materials Management and Compliance Assurance, Waste Engineering
and Enforcement Division (“WEED”) conducted an inspection at the Site on April 19 & 27, 2018.
Based upon the inspection, WEED found that the Respondent failed to:

a. Perform hazardous waste determinations on all solid waste generated at the Site, as
required by Section 22a-449(c)-102(a)(2)(A) of the Regulations of Connecticut State
Agencies (“RCSA”) incorporating (with specified changes) Title 40 of the Code of Federal
Regulations (“CFR”) 262.11. Specifically, hazardous waste determinations had not been
performed on: 1) 14, 55-gallon containers of waste being managed in the hazardous waste
storage area; 2) waste’s being managed in three former process tanks currently used at the Site
to accumulate and/or evaporate waste; and 3) tramp oil skimmed off the alkali cleaning tanks
used at the Site. In addition, the inspection found that the Waste Profiles reviewed did not
appear to include the waste code F019 associated with partially evaporated aluminum anodize
wastewater generated on-site.

b. Develop and follow a written inspection schedule, as required by Section 22a-449(c)-
102(b)(2) of the RCSA, incorporating 40 CFR 265.15(b)(1). Specifically, WEED found that
while the Respondent had developed a written inspection schedule for the hazardous waste
storage area, a written inspection schedule had not been developed for other areas of the Site
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k.

where hazardous wastes are managed including, but not limited to, the “process area” where
hazardous wastes are stored and/or treated in tanks and containers.

Record inspections in a log or summary, as required by Section 22a-449(c)-102(b)(2) of
the RCSA, incorporating 40 CFR 265.15(d). Specifically, WEED found that the Respondent
ceased recording hazardous waste inspections in September 2017.

Ensure that containers of hazardous waste stored at the Site are managed within a
containment system, as required by Section 22a-449(c)-102(a)(2)(E) of the RCSA,
incorporating 40 CFR 264.175. Specifically, WEED found that numerous containers of
hazardous waste were being stored in the hazardous waste storage area and in the process area
of the Site without the required secondary containment.

Clearly mark containers of hazardous waste with the date upon which accumulation
began, as required by Section 22a-449(c)-102(a)(1) of the RCSA, incorporating 40 CFR
262.34(a)(2). Specifically, WEED found that numerous containers of hazardous waste
managed in the hazardous waste storage area and the process area were not marked with the
date identifying when waste began accumulating in such containers.

Mark containers of hazardous waste with the words “Hazardous Waste” and a
description of their contents, as required by Section 22a-449(c)-102(a)(2)(J) of the RCSA,
incorporating (with specified changes) 40 CFR 262.34(a)(3). Specifically, WEED found that
numerous containers of hazardous waste managed in the hazardous waste storage area and the
process area were not marked with the words “hazardous waste” and/or with words describing
the contents of the container.

Keep containers of hazardous waste closed except when adding or removing waste, as
required by Section 22a-449(c)-102(a)(2)(E) of the RCSA, incorporating 40 CFR
265.173(a). Specifically, WEED found that numerous containers of hazardous waste managed
in the hazardous waste storage area and the process area were not closed at the time of
inspection.

Maintain adequate aisle space in the area where hazardous waste is stored, as required
by Section 22a-449(c)-102(a)(2)(K) of the RCSA, incorporating 40 CFR 265.35.
Specifically, WEED found that the hazardous waste storage area was filled with old equipment
so that waste containers could not be easily accessed for inspection and/or emergency purposes.

Adequately separate containers of hazardous wastes from incompatible material stored

nearby, as required by Section 22a-449(c)-102(a)(2)(E) of the RCSA, incorporating 40
CFR 265.177. Specifically, WEED found two totes containing acid waste were stored in close
proximity to a tote and a drum of alkali waste (black oxide) without adequate means of
protection (i.e., dike, berm, wall, etc.).

Obtain a permit prior to storing hazardous waste, as required by Section 22a-449(c)-
110(a)(2)(A) of the RCSA, incorporating 40 CFR 270.1(c). Specifically, WEED found that
numerous containers of hazardous waste were being stored at the Site for a period exceeding
90 days without the Respondent having been issued a RCRA Part B storage permit.

Obtain a permit prior to treating hazardous waste, as required by Section 222a-449(c)-
110(a)(2)(A) of the RCSA, incorporating 40 CFR 270.1(c). Specifically, WEED found that
hazardous waste was being treated in tanks at the time of inspection without the Respondent
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having been issued a Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”) Part B treatment
permit.
l. Provide a hazardous waste tank system with secondary containment, as required by
Section 22a-449(c)-102(a)(2)(F) of the RCSA, incorporating 40 CFR 265.192. Specifically,
WEED found that at least one hazardous waste tank system being operated in the process area
was not provided with secondary containment.
m. Mark tanks of hazardous waste with the words “Hazardous Waste” and a description of
their contents, as required by Section 22a-449(c)-102(a)(2)(J) of the RCSA, incorporating
(with specified changes) 40 CFR 262.34(a)(3). Specifically, WEED found that at least five
(5) tanks managing hazardous waste in the process area were not marked with the words
“hazardous waste” or with a description of the waste as required.
n. Provide training to employees involved in the management of hazardous waste at the Site,
as required by Section 22a-449(c)-102(a)(2)(K) of the RCSA, incorporating 40 CFR
265.16. Specifically, WEED found no documentation to demonstrate that Respondent’s
employees had been provided with adequate hazardous waste management training.
6. By virtue of the above, the Respondent has violated RCSA Section 22a-449(c)-100, et. seq.
7. On July 18, 2018, WEED issued Notice of Violation No. WSWDH18031 to the Respondent to
correct the violations corresponding to those cited in subparagraphs A.5.a. and A.5.n. of this order.
8. On September 10, 2018, WEED received a submittal to Notice of Violation No, WSWDH18031
in which Respondent has reported that violations A.5.e., A.5.f, A.5.g., and A.5.k. of this order
were addressed.
B. The Commissioner, acting under Sections 22a-6 and 22a-449 of the Connecticut General Statutes, orders

Respondent as follows:

L.

Compliance Assurance. Respondent shall bring all violations identified in paragraph A.S. above into
compliance and shall maintain its compliance with all applicable provisions of the RCSA Sections 22a-
449(c)-100, et. seq. including, but not limited to, those regulations identified in paragraph A.5. above.
In particular:

a.

Retention of Consultant: On or before thirty (30) days after the issuance of this order, the
Respondent shall identify, for the Commissioner’s review and written approval, one or more
qualified consultant(s) to prepare the documents and oversee the actions required by this
order. The Respondent shall retain one or more qualified consultants as approved by the
Commissioner until they comply with this order. Within ten (10) days after retaining any qualified
consultant(s) other than one originally identified and approved under this paragraph, the
Respondent shall notify the Commissioner in writing of the identity of and receive written approval
of such other qualified consultant(s) from the Commissioner. In order to seek approval of a
qualified consultant(s), Respondent shall submit to the Commissioner a description of a qualified
consultant(s)’ education, experience and training which is relevant to the work required by this
order. Nothing in this paragraph shall preclude the Commissioner from finding a previously
acceptable consultant unacceptable.

Correction of Violations: On or before forty-five (45) days of approval of the qualified consultant,
Respondents shall perform all actions which it failed to perform as specified in paragraph A.5. of
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this order, and shall submit for the Commissioner's review and written approval certification of
compliance with the hazardous waste management requirements specified in those subparagraphs,
and documentation demonstrating such compliance.

c. Compliance Plan: On or before ninety (90) days of approval of the qualified consultant,
Respondent shall submit for the Commissioner's review and written approval, a plan detailing
additional actions and/or operational changes it has undertaken or will undertake to ensure
compliance with Connecticut’s hazardous waste management regulations RCSA Section 22a-
449(c)-100, et. seq.; including, but not limited to, those set forth in paragraph A.5. of this order. In
addition, the plan shall include specifics with respect to whose responsibility it will be to comply
with Connecticut’s hazardous waste management regulations and what practices will be put into
place to assure compliance with such regulations is achieved at the Site. Within five (5) days after
the Commissioner approves such plan, Respondent shall carry out the plan and maintain it in full
effect thereafter.

d. Recycling Profile: On or before ninety (90) days after issuance of this order, Respondent shall conduct
a comprehensive recycling review of the Site to evaluate compliance with Connecticut’s recycling laws
set forth in CGS Section 22a-241b(d), and shall submit for the Commissioner’s review and written
approval a Business Recycling Profile documenting the management of recyclable materials at the Site.
Refer to the enclosed Business Recycling Profile (Attachment A).

Full compliance. Respondent shall not be considered in full compliance with this order until all actions
required by this order have been completed as approved and to the Commissioner’s satisfaction.

Sampling and sample analyses. All sampling and sample analyses which, are required by this order
and all reporting of such sample analyses shall be conducted by a laboratory certified by the
Connecticut Department of Public Health to conduct such sampling and analyses. All sampling and
sample analyses performed under this order shall be performed in accordance with procedures
specified or approved in writing by the Commissioner, or, if no such procedures have been specified
or approved, in accordance with EPA document SW-846.  Unless otherwise specified by the
Commissioner in writing, the value of each parameter shall be reported to the maximum level of
precision and accuracy specified in the applicable protocol, and if no such level is specified, to the
maximum level of precision and accuracy possible.

Approvals. Respondent shall use best efforts to submit to the Commissioner all documents required
by this order in a complete and approvable form. If the Commissioner notifies Respondent that any
document or other action is deficient, and does not approve it with conditions or modifications, it is
deemed disapproved, and Respondent shall correct the deficiencies and resubmit it within the time
specified by the Commissioner or, if no time is specified by the Commissioner, within thirty (30) days
of the Commissioner's notice of deficiencies. In approving any document or other action under this
order, the Commissioner may approve the document or other action as submitted or performed or with
such conditions or modifications as the Commissioner deems necessary to carry out the purposes of
this order. Nothing in this paragraph shall excuse noncompliance or delay.

Definitions. As used in this order, "Commissioner" means the Commissioner or a representative of the
Commissioner.

Dates. The date of “issuance” of this order is the date the order is deposited in the U.S. mail or
personally delivered, whichever is eatlier. The date of submission to the Commissioner of any
document required by this order shall be the date such document is received by the Commissioner.
The date of any notice by the Commissioner under this order, including but not limited to notice of
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10.

11.

12,

13,

approval or disapproval of any document or other action, shall be the date such notice is deposited in
the U.S. mail or is personally delivered, whichever is earlier. Except as otherwise specified in this
order, the word "day" as used in this order means calendar day. Any document or action which is
required by this order to be submitted or performed by a date which falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a
Connecticut or federal holiday shall be submitted or performed by the next day which is not a Saturday,
Sunday or Connecticut or federal holiday.

Certification of documents. Any document, including but not limited to any notice, which is required
to be submitted to the Commissioner under this order shall be signed by Respondent or, if Respondent
is not an individual, by Respondent’s chief executive officer or a duly authorized representative of
such officer, as those terms are defined in §22a-430-3(b)(2) of the Regulations of Connecticut State
Agencies, and by the individual(s) responsible for actually preparing such document, and each such
individual shall certify in writing as follows:

"I have personally examined and am familiar with the information submitted in this
document and all attachments thereto, and I certify, based on reasonable investigation,
including my inquiry of those individuals responsible for obtaining the information,
that the submitted information is true, accurate and complete to the best of my
knowledge and belief. I understand that any false statement made in the submitted
information may be punishable as a criminal offense under §53a-157b of the
Connecticut General Statutes and any other applicable law."

False statements. Any false statement in any information submitted pursuant to this order may be
punishable as a criminal offense under §53a-157b of the Connecticut General Statutes and any other
applicable law.

Notice of transfer; liability of Respondent. Until Respondent has fully complied with this order,
Respondent shall notify the Commissioner in writing no later than fifteen (15) days after transferring
all or any portion of the facility, the operations, the site or the business which is the subject of this
order or after obtaining a new mailing or location address. Respondent’s obligations under this order
shall not be affected by the passage of'title to any property to any other person or municipality.

Commissionet's powers. Nothing in this order shall affect the Commissioner's authority to institute any
proceeding or take any other action to prevent or abate violations of law, prevent or abate pollution,
recover costs and natural resource damages, and to impose penalties for past, present, or future
violations of law not otherwise described in this order. If at any time the Commissioner determines
that the actions taken by Respondent pursuant to this order have not successfully corrected all
violations, fully characterized the extent or degree of any pollution, or successfully abated or prevented
pollution, the Commissioner may institute any proceeding to require Respondent to undertake further
investigation or further action to prevent or abate pollution.

Respondent's obligations under law. Nothing in this order shall relieve Respondent of other obligations
under applicable federal, state and local law.

No assurance by Commissioner. No provision of this order and no action or inaction by the
Commissioner shall be construed to constitute an assurance by the Commissioner that the actions taken
by Respondent pursuant to this order will result in compliance or prevent or abate pollution.

Access to site. Any representative of the Department of Energy and Environmental Protection may
enter the site without prior notice for the purposes of monitoring and enforcing the actions required or
allowed by this order.
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14.

15,

16.

17.

No effect on rights of other persons. This order neither creates nor affects any rights of persons or
municipalities that are not parties to this order.

Notice to Commissioner of changes. Within fifteen (15) days of the date Respondent becomes aware
of a change in any information submitted to the Commissioner under this order, or that any such
information was inaccurate or misleading or that any relevant information was omitted, Respondent
shall submit the correct or omitted information to the Commissioner.

Notification of noncompliance. In the event that Respondent becomes aware that it did not or may not
comply, or did not or may not comply on time, with any requirement of this order or of any document
required hereunder, Respondent shall immediately notify by telephone the individual identified in the
next paragraph and shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that any noncompliance or delay is avoided
or, if unavoidable, is minimized to the greatest extent possible. Within five (5) days of the initial
notice, Respondent shall submit in writing the date, time, and duration of the noncompliance and the
reasons for the noncompliance or delay and propose, for the review and written approval of the
Commissioner, dates by which compliance will be achieved, and Respondent shall comply with any
dates which may be approved in writing by the Commissioner. Notification by Respondent shall not
excuse noncompliance or delay, and the Commissioner's approval of any compliance dates proposed
shall not excuse noncompliance or delay unless specifically so stated by the Commissioner in writing.

Submission of documents. Any document required to be submitted to the Commissioner under this
order shall, unless otherwise specified in this consent order or in writing by the Commissioner, be
directed to:

Mr. Paul Franson, Environmental Analyst 3

Department of Energy and Environmental Protection

Bureau of Materials Management and Compliance Assurance
Waste Engineering and Enforcement Division

79 Elm Street

Hartford, Connecticut 06106-5127

Issued as a final order of the Commissioner of Energy and Environmental Protection.

gy /i A ;/,7///

Kathelmc;,/ Dykes Datd
Commlssmnel
Department of Energy and Environmental Protection

Unilateral Order No. WSWDH19003

Sent via electronic certified mail
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